
9/7/2023 Agenda  

 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration – Ground Floor Training Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 
September 7, 2023 

5:30 p.m. 
 

(1) CALL TO ORDER 
 

(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – August 3, 2023 
 

(4) REPORTS 
A. Economic Development Director’s Report 
B. Business Programs Report 
C. Monthly Financial Report 
D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see August bills that have been paid) 

 

EDA   

EDA Mileage – August meeting $111.79 

  

Bedford Center  

Town of Bedford Power – CVCC  $2,462.69 

Peaksview Landscaping  $1,494.17 

BRWA – CVCC  $135.00 

  

New London  

Southside Electric $593.00 

Peaksview Landscaping (fallen crepe myrtle) $508.34 

  

Washington Street  

Peaksview Landscaping  $121.67 

  

TOTAL: $5,426.66 

 
 
 



9/7/2023 Agenda  

 

(5) TOWN OF BEDFORD  
 

(6) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 
A. Approval of CVCC HVAC project 
B. Discussion of East Coast Fabrication expansion request 
 

(7) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 
 

(8) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER 
A. Lot 4 Tier status report 

 
(9) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 

 
(10) OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Approval of revised EDA by-laws 
B. Close Valtim performance agreements 
C. Close Blue Ridge Optics performance agreement 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 

 
MINUTES 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration – Board Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 

August 3, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Economic Development Authority: 
Present: David Wells (District 1); Vicki Gardner (District 2); Wyatt Walton (District 3); Matthew Braud 
(District 4); Kristy Milton (District 5); Jimmy Robertson (District 6); Jim Messier (District 7) 
Staff Present: Pam Bailey – Economic Development Director; Holley Scheffel – Business Programs 
Coordinator; Patrick Skelley–County Attorney; Robert Hiss – County Administrator; Doug Coffman – 
Public Works; Trish Luger –Administrative Assistant 
Guests: Mickey Johnson  
 

(1) CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Robertson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 

(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Robertson called for a motion to approve the agenda with changes to include July 
financials. Mr. Messier moved, seconded by Mr. Braud. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 

(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – June 1, 2023, and June 19, 2023 
Chairman Robertson asked for motion to approve both June meeting minutes. Mr. Messier moved, 
seconded by Mr. Braud.  
Adopted Unanimously 
 

(4) REPORTS 
A. Economic Development Director’s Report 

Ms. Bailey presented the new Bedford County brochure. This will aid as a recruitment tool for 
companies hiring new employees, focusing on living, working, and playing in the county. A few 
modifications will be made when the brochure is set to print again. 
 
CVCC has asked Ms. Bailey to inquire with EDA regarding extra funding for the Career Coach position.  
Ms. Bailey has asked CVCC to explore more of their resources and available Perkins grant funds. The 
Lynchburg Regional Business Alliance is working on a GO Virginia grant request to aid in additional 
funds for Career Coaches in Bedford and Amherst Counties, but this is not a long-term solution to 
funding a full-time position. Bif Jonson was recently appointed to the VCCS Board and Ms. Bailey will 
reach out to him. 



 

 
A pharmaceutical technology industry prospect for the TEVA building is in motion and a non-
disclosure agreement has been signed. In addition to this property, the company has plans for an 
additional 400,000 square feet and New London with its dark fiber is desirable. The Commonwealth is 
currently waiting for the prospect to reveal their financials so incentives can be discussed.  
 
A current business in town desires a start-up/incubator space and a lot in Bedford Center for Business 
was mentioned. Ms. Bailey has reached out to Central Virginia Planning District Commission regarding 
an EDA grant for a feasibility study. Ms. Bailey will reach out to Scott Elliott and Johnny on the Spot 
for building recommendations. 
 
The Montvale plat has been recorded. 
 
Five BRE visits have been completed: Innerspec Technologies, Blue Ridge Optics, Turman Lumber, 
Simplimatic Automation and Damage Prevention. 
Ms. Bailey will share a spreadsheet all listing performance agreements.  
 
Bedford YMCA opened their childcare facility on July 5. Sixty spots have been filled except for 2 infant 
spots.  
 
On June 30, Ms. Bailey and Mr. Hiss met with Southside Electric about capacity and growth in the 
county. Discussion included the timeline should more power be needed in New London.  
 
Ms. Bailey attended the VEDA leadership retreat in Danville and will begin serving on their Board of 
Directors in January 2024. 
 

B. Business Programs Report 
Bedford ONE tours for 2023/2024 have been booked. 
 
Ms. Scheffel attended Experience Works, a career technical education conference. It was sponsored 
by the Dept of Education and the theme was Working Together. Conversation after the conference 
resulted in speaking with the Work Base Learning Coordinator of Roanoke City Schools. This initiated 
a meeting July 25 with Roanoke City, Roanoke County and Bedford County. A follow up meeting 
September 12 will include Bedford, Botetourt, Franklin, and Roanoke counties, along with Roanoke 
City and Salem City.  The goal is to share resources and find best practices.   
 
Ms. Scheffel has emailed the principals of the three area high schools along with the tech center to 
arrange a meeting about the Bedford ONE program. Her goal is to become a resource for internships 
or apprenticeships. An appointment at Staunton River is set August 11.   
 
A connection has been made with Virginia Career Works regarding grant funding for an employment 
centered video mini-series focusing on hard to fill jobs in our region including healthcare, 
manufacturing, and nuclear energy. 
 
 



 

The Bedford Chamber along with the school division are preparing for a 7th grade Career Expo to be 
held at Susie G. Gibson in early October. 
 
A business roundtable is scheduled for August 24 at the Bedford Welcome Center 8:30 - 10 a.m. The 
focus will be how Virginia Career Works can assist employers with people that have work barriers. 
The Department for Aging & Rehabilitative Services (DARS) will also be present. 
 
Interviews for the Career Coach position are in force and an update should be received soon.  
 

C. Monthly Financial Report 
Ms. Anderson will speak to the committee at a future meeting on understanding the budget reports. 
Ms. Bailey will research how the reports can be displayed to the group. 
 
Brown Edwards is working on the FY23 audit. 
 
 

D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see June/July bills that have been paid) 
 July’s expenses were omitted and reflect below.   

 
EDA   
EDA Mileage – January meeting $180.04  
  
Bedford Center  
Town of Bedford Power – CVCC                           $5,322.59 
Peaksview Landscaping $966.68 
BRWA – CVCC $274.66 
  
New London  
Southside Electric $1,241.92 
Peaksview Landscaping  $2,988.34 
  
Washington Street  
Peaksview Landscaping  $243.34 
  
TOTAL: $11,217.57 

 
 

(5) TOWN OF BEDFORD  
Ms. Zirkle and Ms. Bailey are collaborating on a ½-page ad for the November issue of Site Selection 
Magazine in the Virginia State Spotlight feature. The focus is on the assets of the Town and County of 
Bedford.   
 
The Town EDA is hoping to close on the Winoa USA building soon.  
The Town was showcased in the latest issue of Virginia Business magazine.  



 

(6) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 
A. CVCC HVAC pricing review 

Mr. Coffman is currently waiting additional pricing for the 40 x 24 duct heater. A $22,000 quote from 
Trane has been received. An update will be shared at the next meeting.  

 
(7) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 

A. Consideration of updating the master plan for Montvale Center for Commerce. 
A proposal to create a new site plan for Montvale was discussed to potentially grade the two 
remaining lots on the north side. Ms. Bailey reached out to Master Engineers for pricing on a creating 
a pad-ready site for a 50,000 - 100,000 square ft. building. It was expressed to get a pricing to build a 
building in addition to the creating a pad-ready site.   
  

(8) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER  
A. Consideration to proceed with lots 10A & 12A pad-ready sites. 

The County’s CIP budget has $137,000 to use for these two lots. It was suggested to let Dovetail know 
that if there is no response by the 4th quarter, the EDA will move forward with development of the 
sites. Ms. Bailey will price current grading costs and notify the Tobacco Commission about extending 
the grant deadline.  

B. Consideration for Lot 4 Tier 4/5 status 
The site grade is still currently a Tier 3. Pricing to rate it a 4/5 came from Hurt & Proffitt, $1,200, and 
Wiley Wilson, $6,000.  
Mr. Walton moved, seconded by Mr. Braud, to award the contract to Hurt & Proffitt. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 

C. Phase 2 Master Plan status report 
The project is currently underway with Wiley Wilson and should be complete the end of September.  
A new master plan to review the lay of out the lots should be available for view at the next meeting. 
 

(9) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 
A. Request from AIT to use the Elba parking lot to test equipment. 

AIT would cut a ¼- to ½-inch groove, tape over, and seal the pavement to test their machinery. It was 
stated to Ms. Bailey to not move forward at this time.  
 

B. Request for action regarding parking lot paving project. 
Three bids were received. The scope of work was reviewed with Mr. Ralph Patterson and Mr. 
Coffman feels comfortable moving forward. There is a drain on the far side of Elba’s that Mr. Coffman 
will take care of. Every indication is that this project will be completed in the current paving season, 
which is sometime before December. A grant to cover landscaping the islands is being researched. 
Mr. Messier moved, seconded by Mrs. Gardner, to award the contract to Patterson Brothers Paving 
Company in the amount of $226,192. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 
 
 
 
 



 

(10) Other Business 
A. Amend EDA By-Laws to allow for electronic meetings. 

  
A special meeting was called June 19th but there were no rules in the by-laws to meet electronically.     
Mr. Messier moved, seconded by Ms. Milton, to take what is presented in the By-Laws, less section II, 
and table/post it for thirty days, to be discussed at the next meeting. 
Voting no: Mr. Walton   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Braud, seconded by Mr. Walton, to enter a closed session. 
 

(11) CLOSED SESSION 
Closed Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A) (3), Discussion or consideration of the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real 
property, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining 
position or negotiating strategy of the public body. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Braud, seconded by Mr. Wells, to come out of the closed session. 
 
 
 
Adjourned 7:13 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________             _____________________________________ 
Chairman                                                                             Secretary 
 



Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:18
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 02

ACCOUNTS FOR:                              ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY     APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

561500 EDA INTEREST EARNINGS              

561500 415210  BRWA CELL                          0           0      -2,653.02      -1,326.51            .00       2,653.02  100.0%

     TOTAL EDA INTEREST EARNINGS                  0           0      -2,653.02      -1,326.51            .00       2,653.02  100.0%

561800 EDA MISC REVENUE                   

561800 418901  MISC REV                           0           0     -17,968.97            .00            .00      17,968.97  100.0%

     TOTAL EDA MISC REVENUE                       0           0     -17,968.97            .00            .00      17,968.97  100.0%

561900 EDA RECOVERED COSTS                

561900 419010 BLVAC RC-OTHER                 -1,448      -1,448            .00            .00            .00      -1,447.59     .0%
561900 419010 DMPRE RC-OTHER                   -390        -390            .00            .00            .00        -390.41     .0%
561900 419010 LU RC LU                       -2,597      -2,597            .00            .00            .00      -2,597.00     .0%
561900 419010 NANO RC NANO                     -393        -393            .00            .00            .00        -393.00     .0%
561900 419010 SMPLM RC-OTHER                 -1,061      -1,061            .00            .00            .00      -1,061.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA RECOVERED COSTS               -5,889      -5,889            .00            .00            .00      -5,889.00     .0%

564100 EDA OTHER FINANCING SOURCES        

564100 441110  GF XFER                     -163,055    -163,055            .00            .00            .00    -163,055.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA OTHER FINANCING SOURCES     -163,055    -163,055            .00            .00            .00    -163,055.00     .0%

565600 EDA ADMINISTRATION                 

565600 531110  ACCTING                       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
565600 531120  ADVERTISE                      6,500       6,500       2,946.50       2,000.00            .00       3,553.50   45.3%
565600 531130  LEGAL                          2,500       2,500            .00            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%
565600 531220 SAL SKILLED                    23,000      23,000            .00            .00            .00      23,000.00     .0%

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ellqxy2UknTXdvWl%2FcL7bp2MHY00NN2SYH19mVgg%2FmB5SA3fb%2FdSksPxc17VFVeq
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QTlVwWjT%2Fq2EkGRWNIogekM0Uqeq71HAtk1Zl78Vv%2B9IsQLTCY0CjqK0E0wJvmK%2B
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=F25ZtLyIDj8LMA%2BjhIGt4haIg7Zto37jz4KytsNZYBnC2NlvtB2B7DTp8eLWaJY05vgOcJX1oLNM5Z5h4xYd%2Fw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JVa4rP3yuIrmL4RWiNx7lnWkeX8yl5WAXmxXqEgrdOTtkVuo4WmIEBE02zw24men83vPJSd7pEGgUwTmWn9hHg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yU41fQy2FavoHUo5QuecVmpV2O4VOd%2BsegP4XDKNOrL3mALGieCCYaxLHsL622VZ
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=iIyroNRjc0I6uxWrCEjYAg93hWv0tmL5thPtCRXrotNBJ%2FFag8oz3JjR7jhGQnfr%2Bk1sjXux543G8mXxqVOGuw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fgIkKPyS39thlJhwLU5qa32qFoK2w4N5lS%2B%2BPUpoOJmSkikY0irQVidemr8aFrKhEOp3lEFCwtfwZGnrsB7WwQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=LUidzPhRu4wPFAnNVflHFVssdFVtdwunmJbS4w3qz28ffa5UaAvuRph7GE0LE5S1
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MzqTyEIbDfcEeBlkRcpY5%2BswlV5%2FQbmDcXHi6wtRUTwA6zP0eanHhi4hPej7QYtl
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=589fbm7dy%2F6u0OHA2iJ9ovybta0k9sf91trY4pxuV1Psg5P3LSUG%2FZ32Agorjrg4
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jF0gaqQrmjmiXuBsTdQw3JYNImuEP2LcvNxnKjUoGDj0AKjvnAqXIsart7WUh5zF
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=P47wEJwwNMJk60Ja9WgUguWlP2EV4BtgmLK9r7MRPin8Z7A9VkFYd4YxzCsAtSl2


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:18
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 02

ACCOUNTS FOR:                              ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY     APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565600 531410  BLDG SVCS                    150,000     150,000            .00            .00            .00     150,000.00     .0%
565600 531410 CVCC BLDG SVCS                      0           0         476.25         476.25            .00        -476.25  100.0%
565600 531510  POSTAGE                          120         120            .00            .00            .00         120.00     .0%
565600 531730  CONF                           1,500       1,500            .00            .00            .00       1,500.00     .0%
565600 531750  EE RECOGNT                       100         100            .00            .00            .00         100.00     .0%
565600 531820  MILEAGE                        1,500       1,500         111.79         111.79            .00       1,388.21    7.5%
565600 551210  GEN LIAB                         654         654            .00            .00            .00         654.00     .0%
565600 551220  AUTO LIAB                        150         150            .00            .00            .00         150.00     .0%
565600 551230  PROP INS                      10,018      10,018            .00            .00            .00      10,018.00     .0%
565600 551240  BOILER IN                      1,264       1,264            .00            .00            .00       1,264.00     .0%
565600 551250  OTH FIN IN                       675         675            .00            .00            .00         675.00     .0%
565600 551260  PO INS                           182         182            .00            .00            .00         182.00     .0%
565600 551290  CYBER INS                        100         100            .00            .00            .00         100.00     .0%
565600 561120  OFFICE SUP                       500         500            .00            .00            .00         500.00     .0%
565600 561140  MEALS                          2,300       2,300         157.32            .00            .00       2,142.68    6.8%
565600 561140 BDONE BDONEMEALS                3,000       3,000            .00            .00            .00       3,000.00     .0%
565600 561140 BSAPP BSAPPMEALS                2,500       2,500            .00            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA ADMINISTRATION               216,563     216,563       3,691.86       2,588.04            .00     212,871.14    1.7%

565615 EDA BEDFORD CTR FOR BUSINESS       

565615 531410  BLDG SVCS                      9,500       9,500            .00            .00            .00       9,500.00     .0%
565615 531410 CVCC CVCC SVCS                      0           0          80.00            .00            .00         -80.00  100.0%
565615 531420  GROUND SVC                     8,900       8,900         483.34            .00            .00       8,416.66    5.4%
565615 531430 CVCC EQ SVCS                   31,200      31,200       5,435.82       5,435.82            .00      25,764.18   17.4%
565615 531430 ECOST EQ SVCS                   2,000       2,000            .00            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%
565615 551110 CVCC CVCC ELECT                40,000      40,000       5,216.49       2,462.69            .00      34,783.51   13.0%
565615 551130 CVCC CVCC WATER                 2,000       2,000         135.00         135.00            .00       1,865.00    6.8%
565615 561510 CVCC CVCC BUILD                     0           0          82.70            .00            .00         -82.70  100.0%

     TOTAL EDA BEDFORD CTR FOR BUSINES       93,600      93,600      11,433.35       8,033.51            .00      82,166.65   12.2%

56561515 RENT                               

56561515 415201 CVCC CVCC RENT             -142,296    -142,296            .00            .00            .00    -142,296.00     .0%
56561515 415201 ECOST ECOASTRENT           -121,280    -121,280     -10,106.67            .00            .00    -111,173.33    8.3%
56561515 415201 MBC MBC RENT                 -3,600      -3,600        -300.00            .00            .00      -3,300.00    8.3%

     TOTAL RENT                            -267,176    -267,176     -10,406.67            .00            .00    -256,769.33    3.9%

565621 EDA BEDFORD BREWERY                

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QM4YNsdfQwwUr3DMmArV3rbDhs%2FORWk%2FtuJ0MNaG%2FKVYsc6nwfH2YN1BFy%2FsMPjJ
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Hk91P55mmsIGxZHnN%2BqGhoUfFMmIvT00aV8%2F4%2BpZcb8y19NB375pDjJ8qHcLnofDrZpCnc9we8MemIkWTocBdA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2Bw7GEh9fyE9ucJ7VDuDyGHNtm3Y6VDEX0%2BqZ6Dv3Xns2aarL%2BkGTaoTAb0W3JscD
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nyEwsEWMRo%2Fzvwsrk9Z0VSIzJ0RbknclfpyKBXSa2EeSMCwOvfsaUfZ0mbZiylNk
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=aa0iCotdda5HysACHDLSKxUH74u3bSfdjhh55CXt2p53RGYGVVhv81NfWomPi3EN
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jia18vTo1IDTGR0QgvGDcQt1CCghqFNZEcpOQlJIm%2Bxwj%2FyXS58Gnm8u2v8CMONC
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ztEIhnQPgUnUSEZImqavzBN5%2B1PVtveLHh0wVFwJA563lGC%2Feu%2FQWgfgSIoEX4tf
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JDxKp7fgn6S7ZbRmaabhMIYM7NzzgaQ2PqT0dMcXJmES5D3x9XTUIzmjhiIXrYac
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xfg6rt1D0kub7NcxsXYAjPWSfgdV%2BM0tsb6VLj4PjyA83BbRdmvy0zoKbsm5%2Fwry
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=LEXD6LrefPOXdLSLps0IcvULlN4ewoWqKmjbzXmUKuA56tWfyOMZ7BKLp0Y%2BDkOj
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tgtjIMygxeXOSB0ECvs6VqEqRJjYNC2K3MhyfSo4hy0ZjGwZp%2F%2BNXJlBSNrmp1I8
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3nu%2BzcsbioJWfYXyke5esZ9iElQat2RZLwCv3SBL5KuuzoFs9pRfHWkSFIg%2FUazA
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RyLXTTn55hagYBD9p9rc%2FmUmOUdTR68HGxsYIUh26GnLIZU18S4OacinmibWjqu%2F
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2XvFkzjkQRLTCB4qFNELZULCNYXEPFXlbcVR3WSounMFAHiosExEda74yCsmydzd
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Z5gXkrKC%2BERIyS8TXr%2FybLw50cC62ZPN8Pj9vb5cebuwm2qNJsJuQCZ7AUbTbp2Y
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=az2L6fi0ogRKpV1602DabzLYesZtLcyUzWEVxgzD5voNZr9obX3aMmaFuWfNtqxidghh9b%2BE9YCaTM6FZ59spw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jn1XG7KFFNrG%2Fpt1ELnCc4CN5al1WmcC1X0vJQdKqXahnIaEJp5Zy8U72HiUIJ4hRGxgbTc7Em5GrWRip%2Bv88Q%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=8egoUDrjOrV0%2FzoN%2FZ7F0eFkF%2BMHDov7d1oQoCXCKPuyXlNesfMtFT0w4GY4z15l
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QZslUPE0%2Fkj5GBDVMd%2BWEbnZscE4aPGMii03mGFwLi9SNLsPn4pi5uSeGLVsQUD%2FVyQBan2cm8q2SYhSIEm3yQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=bjpB%2FpPPNkcGSZMaj7%2B6RUW8K%2BUilStHQkD5TjLtgHqTvVyKep2fzIiTpsCskK7C
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nDQ5S6wAdqOvVag95F0CV09gpkXDeDT8396MV7gi6Gti0mtyKcBgRoFM%2FiB0m5ORBMVjggetP3kG6Zq9jV1tfg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cE1x9No9xjZmhiQABADV2A1S3LID%2BOD2UwfyL00p3jBwMffMQPXGsBClaYbdkQf4rKYA%2BPvDaQD7MlEe7tX9Pg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oG%2BASv5qgfd1YlX0H6JuYj6kVteehYrGhyiZCDLMfI7EiJN6AHXDO25KuvtQg9PSrxCpRKvIAEvyNN7mwRPuSA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RW5p7C2prfOkoH2zthQzhxpHNGRgZbTUADmm5nj%2BFFtT%2Bt76qkk%2B7FHKCDPDW%2BLiA3nRSU2Nypi2vLs0Tc1J%2Fg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=aT3jsE7MrqWOy566zCcupvBhK%2Bok%2FEcS2ede93WJmODgX5DK6yIPuErC%2FAw0AAp3%2Fag4JkYTBrUG9nXpW63Jvw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=GOnb37aKkJ1kL9qHguQYhKublfplL7AW9Xrj%2Fg2WF%2FMg%2B%2Bk%2Bwz6yVGU8lwdyKXoJFnNj%2BNFRIHAHJbip4xiGgw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KAsg%2FuQXyGlhlB9itzdC6Xy13edq%2Bk%2BFmbZkDqrLMPHQMzre7TRrxEIbDQhuZ7783si4jDqV4Ks8Q%2B9n1jPmrw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rxJ8UQaXLRu326dcjMmjW44BLllgLfoWGgENaXCwIVAdB6bWiyAVoj3BTAN4Cjr8UiDu1cOQ1BHlQE6fLAZxSA%3D%3D


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:18
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 02

ACCOUNTS FOR:                              ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY     APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565621 591130 VCC VCC DEBTPR                 13,035      13,035         996.29            .00            .00      12,039.00    7.6%
565621 591140 VCC VCC DEBTIN                 30,783      30,783       2,655.24            .00            .00      28,127.83    8.6%

     TOTAL EDA BEDFORD BREWERY               43,818      43,818       3,651.53            .00            .00      40,166.83    8.3%

56562115 RENT                               

56562115 415201 BREW BREW RENT              -43,818     -43,818      -3,651.53            .00            .00     -40,166.83    8.3%

     TOTAL RENT                             -43,818     -43,818      -3,651.53            .00            .00     -40,166.83    8.3%

565655 EDA MONTVALE CTR FOR COMMERCE      

565655 531420  GROUND SVC                     1,600       1,600            .00            .00            .00       1,600.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA MONTVALE CTR FOR COMMER        1,600       1,600            .00            .00            .00       1,600.00     .0%

565680 EDA WASHINGTON STREET              

565680 531410  BLDG SVCS                      7,500       7,500            .00            .00            .00       7,500.00     .0%
565680 531420  GROUND SVC                     1,500       1,500         121.67            .00            .00       1,378.33    8.1%
565680 582141  SITE IMR-P                   200,000     200,000            .00            .00            .00     200,000.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA WASHINGTON STREET            209,000     209,000         121.67            .00            .00     208,878.33     .1%

56568015 WASHINGTON STREET RENT             

56568015 415201  PROP RENT                  -30,600     -30,600      -2,550.00            .00            .00     -28,050.00    8.3%

     TOTAL WASHINGTON STREET RENT           -30,600     -30,600      -2,550.00            .00            .00     -28,050.00    8.3%

565685 EDA NEW LONDON                     

565685 531210 NLPH2 A & E                   127,500     127,500      31,875.00      31,875.00      95,625.00            .00  100.0%

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2B8tCSp2AQyq909WmD%2B5NwtDijWhowid2vRUeoc85wmyED9Gdz%2Bdl2ye%2BG0wsR%2Bc0
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ayLObCpQ%2Fb3qodfvf6PkWn1nzwcvSUcBDMK%2F3ngGg34bkvYO6JTa4zRUs6kxwXtk
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=gilWL2eEzbjdLvciCdiaJ3RqF0h0BDx9HjpiuFITgxuEG5UlJ6wTwFHcCMZNdIJ5gpeBhnyTBtan71ug%2FEfAUw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CwlkF%2FvESH8%2FVmW%2F1nSfaEIBTI0OP5DVKULxIoeIRglqUSk3NIOW0pKs18HXAYRq
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6cHcJjaDiyFYPY7%2BHEKFpv0HvAzWsn1VVXT0uoQB4ZFmHQ3DdUQAjuDBfflEfx%2Bp
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YaN%2Fu7qOZ6MBsrTAgB0h4j5%2B64U%2FuHOTRmSYqCKp1BCY%2B%2FPQNdw9WmCUrzRHkEIh
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=T3LPDLebo%2F%2FJ5CBPfk681f1wQ9%2BzPPuCQHX7aMJ48eEhpcSIx0RVUK9UM8JBZ2a2
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=I65K%2FmtQp29oGpIcUWkG%2FqAdXXjap5qiKUptVc4nkhXA%2BI%2Fg1ykln40%2Fb1zGi6tG
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cs7YuwUpuMdOuLqcItlxhWZMY5qa228%2BG%2FK4OsS8pgOG8lsJcRkW0A9ZwTQSyK16N9V9AMRw%2FQF7l2DM93Vdkg%3D%3D


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:18
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 02

ACCOUNTS FOR:                              ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY     APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565685 531410  BLDG SVCS                      3,102       3,102            .00            .00            .00       3,102.00     .0%
565685 531420  GROUND SVC                    20,000      20,000       3,618.35       2,124.18            .00      16,381.65   18.1%
565685 551110  ELECTRIC                       7,100       7,100       1,198.62         589.00            .00       5,901.38   16.9%
565685 551170  OTH SVC CH                         0           0          17.34           4.00            .00         -17.34  100.0%
565685 591130 LOT7 DS PRIN                  105,420     105,420      17,366.89       8,626.23            .00      88,053.34   16.5%
565685 591140 LOT7 DS INT                    48,114      48,114       8,222.09       4,168.26            .00      39,891.56   17.1%

     TOTAL EDA NEW LONDON                   311,236     311,236      62,298.29      47,386.67      95,625.00     153,312.59   50.7%

56568515 RENT                               

56568515 415201 BLVAC PROP RENT            -260,000    -260,000     -21,666.67            .00            .00    -238,333.33    8.3%

     TOTAL RENT                            -260,000    -260,000     -21,666.67            .00            .00    -238,333.33    8.3%

56568524 EDA STATE CATEGORICAL AID          

56568524 425210 NLPH2 ST GR REV             -63,750     -63,750            .00            .00            .00     -63,750.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA STATE CATEGORICAL AID        -63,750     -63,750            .00            .00            .00     -63,750.00     .0%

     TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHOR       41,529      41,529      22,299.84      56,681.71      95,625.00     -76,395.96  284.0%

                        TOTAL REVENUES     -834,288    -834,288     -58,896.86      -1,326.51            .00    -775,391.50
                        TOTAL EXPENSES      875,817     875,817      81,196.70      58,008.22      95,625.00     698,995.54

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WBiIgoUMiQbPV7jYxK874ZTN0bM%2FmPAwY6SpfG3eThkdd6gy68MVTfD%2FtgUZSOQJ
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=LM23ZEsE3byRkZapPquWvg0PBQXd8BERxd10CipA8CQcSBGrnq9IeVax1SuG%2FA83
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TcEuEh8q%2BkT75hbcDNOc7cHV%2FNdLeLCkJ1tNFoYSULECZd0M%2BGB1lTePKI8z3Vr5
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FG3xbrlsS8BdOwzWhUWfZWoohKvCu4oN61zZPw4BDvpel9liG5iyIxlPJzfsCXZt
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6UdGDQK43WMYpOUWaQ58WGYRf5o8NV%2F4RDy1ZqQFJuAQREbXA657pOirYux%2FubOKk1gAQszSa3%2BnuMMI4tHPfQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qvqyfJOx0aDy7qnsmnLBf23GUoty322bUYzYo73brkpQYk3toZV27SAxPC0dBA7pweyaztGXbrjQ%2Bb%2F0vU9bzg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=K4PJoQRx2LlG3Zple91E2JmIIeqR3%2F%2Bv9%2FzeiAhmnu1dnLDZnMEQOqkUQV47l%2BS4k946FDuVQNF0YvPvvQfxvw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=85iLShoxwnTtEd4CRYSlFeqgHk1YzByf5eQSg1%2BDMxND22kY1XIOGkbApyeecwCv8M4SwMym6S9N6AT6dzhPKw%3D%3D


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:18
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      5

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 02

                                           ORIGINAL    REVISED                                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                            APPROP     BUDGET       YTD ACTUAL     MTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                           GRAND TOTAL       41,529      41,529      22,299.84      56,681.71      95,625.00     -76,395.96  284.0%

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pam Bailey **                                            



Bedford County, VA

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2023  3

Report generated: 08/31/2023 10:22
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      1

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 556  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                                  FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             556      110010       EQUITY IN GENERAL CHECKING               -2,008.40         1,847,912.64
             556      120100       BRWA CELL TOWER FUND                      1,326.51            20,362.15
             556      142100       OTHER RECEIVABLES                              .00             2,550.00
             556      145700 BEALE NOTES RECEIVABLE                               .00           646,607.86
             556      145700 DMPRE DAMAGE PREVENTION - NOTES REC                  .00            90,225.00
             556      145800       LEASE RECEIVABLE                               .00         4,600,434.52
             556      181000       LAND                                           .00           612,789.56
             556      181100       BLDG & LAND HELD FOR RESALE                    .00         8,370,768.53
             556      181200       LAND HELD FOR LEASE                            .00            42,628.07
             556      183000       BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS                       .00         8,857,517.45
             556      184000       MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                          .00            18,253.99
             556      189300       ACC DEPR-BUILDINGS & IMPROV                    .00        -3,882,418.76
             556      189400       ACC DEPR-MACHINERY & EQUIP                     .00           -11,926.89
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                               -681.89        21,215,704.12 
LIABILITIES                                                                                                
             556      220300       ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                         -1,990.55           -11,711.06
             556      220600       PERFORMANCE GRANTS PAYABLE                     .00          -520,225.00
             556      281000 LOT7  SHELL BUILDING - NOTES PAYABLE                 .00        -1,871,598.06
             556      281000 VCC   NOTES PAYABLE                                  .00          -645,001.23
             556      293000       DEFERRED REVENUE UNEARNED                      .00          -147,396.00
             556      298140       DIR-LEASES                                     .00        -4,543,208.21
                   TOTAL LIABILITIES                                        -1,990.55        -7,739,139.56 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             556      330000       FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED                        .00       -13,453,189.92
             556      340000       REVENUE CONTROL                         -39,938.10          -121,574.92
             556      350000       EXPENDITURE CONTROL                      42,610.54            98,200.28
             556      393000       BUDGETARY FD BAL-UNASSIGNED                    .00           -16,711.71
             556      393530       BUDGETARY FBAL RESRVD 4 ENC               6,451.42           -20,014.41
             556      394000       ESTIMATED REVENUE CONTROL                      .00           770,538.36
             556      395000       APPROPRIATION CONTROL                          .00          -753,826.65
             556      395500       ENCUMBRANCES CONTROL                     -6,451.42            20,014.41
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                        2,672.44       -13,476,564.56 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                      681.89       -21,215,704.12 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pam Bailey **                                            



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 6B  

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2023 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: East Coast Fabricators Expansion 
                

SUMMARY 

East Coast Fabricators has been in business since 1999 and held a lease in Bedford Center for Business since 2004. The 
company currently employs 12 people. 

The company currently leases about 30,000 SF of space, and needs to expand its operations by about 15,000 – 20,000 sf. We 
have met with Coleman-Adams and discussed the site with Master Engineers. The existing building interior can be renovated to 
expand manufacturing/office space by about 2,000 SF. A 15,000 SF addition could be added to the front of the building. 
However, this extension would result in the loss of 27 parking spaces bringing the total to 112 spaces. CVCC needs 110 for 
their current student population.  

There is not room behind nor on the side of the building for this expansion.  

After speaking with Master’s it is cost-prohibitive to add a few more parking spaces with the little amount of room and it would 
still not gain back the 27 lost with the expansion. 

The company would like to stay in its current space so they don’t have to move, but at this point, it may not be a not option to 
stay. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

To be provided during the meeting. 



















































 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 10A  

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2023 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Approval of Revised EDA By-laws to accommodate remote participation for in-person meeting 
                

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval to modify the EDA by-laws to add Section Bi 1-5 to Article VII. 

SUMMARY 

Following the covid pandemic the Governor of Virginia updated the Code of Virginia Section 2.2-3708.2 to allow 
for meetings to be held via electronic means. A formal policy has not been implemented for the Bedford County 
Economic Development Authority. On the rare occasion a member needs to attend via remote participation during 
an in-person meeting, the by-laws must be updated to allow for those circumstances. 

Beginning on page 5 Article VII. Section Bi 1 – 5 has been added to accommodate for remote participation for in-
person meetings. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 
 

PRIOR ACTIONS 

The EDA previously reviewed the edited by-laws at its August 3, 2023, meeting.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Edited by-laws as discussed at the August EDA meeting. 



Resolution # 

 
 

 

At a regular meeting of the Economic Development of the County of Bedford, Virginia held at the Bedford 

County Administration Building on  September 7, 2023 , beginning at 5:30 pm: 

MEMBERS:      VOTE: 

Jimmy Robertson, Chair 

Wyatt Walton, Vice Chair 

Matthew Braud 

Vicki Gardner 

Jim Messier 

Kristy Milton 

David Wells        

 

On motion of Authority member ____________  , seconded by Authority member_______________, 

which carried by a vote of  , the following was adopted: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

APPROVAL OF REVISED EDA BY-LAWS TO ACCOMMODATE REMOTE PARTICIPATION FOR  

IN-PERSON MEETING 

 

 WHEREAS, Occasionally the need may arise for Economic Development Authority 

members to participate in meetings from a remote location by telephone or other audio or video 

means; and  

WHEREAS, a quorum of the Board must be physically assembled at the primary or central 

meeting location; and  

WHEREAS, remote participation must comply with the provisions set forth in VA Code 

Sec. 2.2-3708.2. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Bedford County Economic Development 

Authority, that, effective September 7, 2023, does hereby approve the proposed By-law changes 

to add item Bi 1 – 5 for Remote Participation for In-Person Meeting.  



 

 

BY-LAWS 

FOR 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

OF THE 

COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA 
 

 

ARTICLE I. 

 

NAME AND OFFICES 

 

A. The name of the Authority shall be the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA. 

 

B. The principal offices of the Authority shall be located within the offices of 

the County of Bedford, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  

 

C. Except as otherwise required by resolution of the Authority, or as the 

business of the Authority may require, all of the books and records of the Authority shall 

be kept at the office to be designated by the Directors of said Authority.  The minutes of 

the Authority shall be open and available for public inspection at all times during normal 

business hours, and copies of the said minutes may be ordered by any citizen upon 

submission of a written request and upon paying in advance the cost of duplicating such 

copies. 

 

 

ARTICLE II. 

 

PURPOSES AND POWERS 

 

The Economic Development Authority of the County of Bedford, Virginia, shall 

fulfill all the purposes and intents of the General Assembly of Virginia, as expressed in 

Chapter 49, (Title 15.2, Chapter 49, Sections 15.2-4900 through 15.2-4920, inclusive, of 

the Code of Virginia), and by any other enactment that may hereafter be adopted  by the 

General Assembly.  Said Authority shall also fulfill all purposes and intents of the Board 

of Supervisors of the County of Bedford, Virginia, as may hereafter be provided and the 

general purpose of the Authority shall be to promote industry and develop trade in the 

area within its jurisdiction for the general good of the people of said area and of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia.  The Authority shall have any and all powers that have been 

granted to it by the Acts of Assembly of Virginia, aforesaid, and the powers that may 

hereafter be granted to it by any enactment of the General Assembly and, also, those 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 2 

powers that may be granted to it by any delegation of authority hereafter granted by the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of Bedford, Virginia.  

 

 

ARTICLE III. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

A. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed of 

seven (7) directors, appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Bedford County, Virginia. 

Each member of the Board of Directors shall be domiciled in and resident of the County 

of Bedford, Virginia. All powers of the Authority shall be vested in the Board of 

Directors. 

 

B. The seven initial directors shall serve for terms of one, two, three, and 

four years; two for one-year terms-; two for two-year terms; two for three-year terms; 

and, one for a four-year term, all as appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Bedford 

County; subsequently terms shall be for four years, except where there have been 

appointments to fill vacancies, in which case the terms shall be for the unexpired terms. 

All terms of office shall be deemed to commence upon the date of the initial 

appointment to the Authority. If at the end of the term of any director, a successor 

thereto has not been appointed, then the director whose term of off ice has expired, shall 

continue to hold office until his successor is appointed and qualified.   

 

C. Directors shall receive compensation per meeting and shall be reimbursed 

for necessary traveling and other expenses incurred in the performance of their dutie s. 

  

D. No Director shall be an officer or employee of the County of Bedford, 

Virginia.  A member of the Board of Supervisors and an administrative official of the 

County government may be appointed as liaisons to the Authority. These persons shall 

not be directors of the Authority, but shall serve in an advisory capacity to the 

Authority.  

 

E. The Board of Directors shall have the right to prepare, or delegate the 

preparation of, confidential reports for submission to any person, governmental body or 

agency consistent with the purposes and powers stated in said ARTICLE II; but no 

action binding the Authority may be taken respecting such reports except by action of 

the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 3 

 

ARTICLE IV. 

 

OATH OF DIRECTORS 

 

Each director shall, before entering on his duties, take and subscribe the oath 

prescribed by Section 49-1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, which shall be administered 

in accordance with law. 

 

ARTICLE V. 

 

OFFICERS 

 

A. The Board of Directors shall elect from its membership a Chairman, a Vice-

Chairman, and from its membership or not, a Secretary and a Treasurer, or a Secretary -

Treasurer.  

 

B. The terms of office for the officers shall be for terms of one year, each, 

commencing at the organizational meeting of the Authority and shall continue until their 

successors are elected. 

 

C. The duties of the Chairman shall be to preside at meetings of the Board of 

Directors and at meetings of the Executive Committee; in cooperation with the Secretary  

to prepare the agenda for any and all meetings, and to make a copy of said agenda 

available to the Secretary for the purpose of providing adequate notice of special 

meetings as hereinafter provided; to call special meetings; to call special elections; to be 

ex-officio a member of all committees; to sign, with the Secretary or Treasurer, or any 

other proper officer of the Authority thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, any 

documents or instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, 

except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by 

the Board of Directors or by the By-Laws to some other officer of the Board of Directors, 

or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general shall 

perform all duties incident to the office of the Chairman and such other duties as may be 

prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.  The Chairman shall have an 

equal vote with the other directors, and shall not have a second, tie-breaking vote on any 

question. 

 

D. The duties of the Vice-Chairman shall be to preside at meetings on the 

request of the Chairman, or in the absence of the Chairman; and in case of the death or 

resignation of the Chairman shall become Chairman for the remainder of the term for 

which the Chairman was elected.  In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman 

shall perform the duties of the Chairman, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of 

and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chairman.  The Vice-Chairman shall 

perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors from time to 

time. 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 4 

 

E. The Secretary or the Secretary-Treasurer in his capacity as Secretary shall 

be responsible for the preparation of the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors 

and Executive Committee, kept in a record book and made available for public inspection 

at all times; to have custody of all important records of the Authority; to have custody of 

the seal of the Authority and to see that the seal of the Authority is affixed to all 

necessary documents or instruments, the execution of which on behalf of the Authority 

under its seal is duly authorized by the Board of Directors; to sign with the Chairman or 

Vice-Chairman any documents or instruments which the Board of Directors has 

authorized to be executed; to see that all notices are duly given as required by law, these 

By-Laws, or by the Board of Directors; to call meetings of the Board of Directors to 

order in the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman and thereupon to conduct an 

election for a temporary presiding officer for that meeting; and in general to perform all 

the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time 

may be assigned by the Board or Directors.  In the absence of the Secretary, the Chairman 

shall appoint a director to be responsible for the preparation of detailed minutes of the 

meeting. 

 

F. The Treasurer or the Secretary-Treasurer in his capacity as Treasurer shall 

be responsible for the keeping of suitable records of all financial transactions of the 

Authority; to have such records audited annually; to furnish a copy of such audit to the 

Board of Supervisors of Bedford County; to make available for public inspection at all 

times each such annual audit; to have charge and custody of all funds and be responsible 

for their investment and deposit in the name of the Authority when authorized by the 

Board of Directors; and in general to perform all the duties incident to the office of 

Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of 

Directors.  The Treasurer or the Secretary-Treasurer shall give bond in such a sum as 

may from time to time be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors, payable to the 

Authority and the Board of Supervisors of Bedford County, Virginia, as their' interests 

may appear, with corporate surety authorized to act as such in the State of Virginia, 

premium on which bond is to be paid as an expense of the Authority.  

 

 

ARTICLE VI. 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

A. The regular election of officers shall be held at the annual organizational  

meeting of the Authority.. 

 

 B. Special elections may be held at any regular or special meeting in order to fill 

vacancies or to fill newly created offices, but only after specific notice, as hereinafter provided 

for, has been given. 

 

 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 5 

ARTICLE VII. 

 

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 

 

A. Annual  Meeting.   The annual organizational meeting of the Board of Directors 

for the election of officers and for the transaction of such other business as may properly come 

before such meeting, shall be in February of each year, at such place and at such time as shall be 

stated in the notice of the meeting or in the waiver of notice thereof.  The schedule of regular 

meetings of the Board shall be determined by resolution at the annual organizational meeting. 

The Authority shall give notice of the date, time and location of its meetings by placing a notice 

in a public place at which notices are regularly posted.  It shall be sufficient notice of regular 

meetings to post an annual regular meeting schedule.  If for any reason an annual meeting is not 

held or if the election of officers shall not be held at any annual meeting or any adjournment 

thereof, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting 

of the Board of Directors as soon thereafter as conveniently may be, and any business transacted 

or elections held at such meeting shall be as valid as if transacted at the annual meeting. 

 

B. Other Regular Meetings.  Other regular or regularly scheduled meetings of the 

Board of Directors, if any, may be held at such time and place as shall from time to time be fixed 

or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

(i) Remote Participation for In-Person Meeting.  

Members may attend and participate in meetings from a remote location by telephone or 

other audio or video means, provided such attendance complies with the provisions of VA Code 

Sec. 2.2-3708.2, as amended from time to time, and subject to the following requirements: 

 

(1) On or before the day of a meeting, (A) the requesting member shall notify the 

Chairman that the member is unable to attend the meeting due to (i) a temporary or permanent 

disability or other medical condition that prevents the member's physical attendance; (ii) a family 

member's medical condition that requires the member to provide care for such family member; or 

(iii) that the member is unable to attend the meeting due to an emergency or a personal matter 

and the member identifies with specificity the nature of the emergency or personal matter, 

thereby preventing the member's physical attendance. 

 

(2) The Board shall record in its minutes (A) the disability or other medical condition, 

or the specific nature of the emergency or personal matter that prevents the member’s 

attendance; and (B) the remote location from which the absent member participated.  If the 

absent member’s remote participation is disapproved because such participation would violate 

this policy, such disapproval shall be recorded in the Board’s minutes. 

 

(3) Such participation by the absent member shall be limited in each calendar year to 

two meetings or 25 percent of the meetings of the Board, whichever is fewer. 

 

(4) A quorum of the Board must be physically assembled at the primary or central 

meeting location. 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 6 

 

(5) The Board shall make arrangements for the voice of the absent member to be 

heard by all persons in attendance at the primary or central meeting location, and the absent 

member must be present for all of the meeting until adjourned. 

 

 

C. Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held 

whenever called by the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman or any two directors. Written notice of a 

Special Meeting to the Directors is not required if the time of the Special Meeting has been fixed 

at a Regular Meeting or if all Members and liaisons are present at the Special Meeting or file a 

written waiver of notice. Otherwise, three working days written notice of a Special Meeting shall 

be given to the Board of Directors stating the time and place and the purpose of the meeting.  

 

D. Waiver of Notice.  Whenever any notice is required to be given to any 

director of any meeting under these By-Laws, a waiver thereof in writing signed by all of 

the directors, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the 

giving of such notice. 

 

 The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice 

of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of 

objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called 

or convened. 

 

E. Quorum.  Four members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum 

of the Board for the purpose of conducting its business and exercising its powers and for 

all other purposes, except that no facilities owned by the Authority shall be leased or 

disposed of in any manner without a majority vote of the members of the Board of 

Directors.  No vacancy in the membership of the Board shall impair the right of a quorum 

to exercise all of the powers and perform all of the duties of the Board.  

 

F. Meetings to be Open to Public.  Formal action shall be taken by the Board 

of Directors only at open sessions and such meetings shall be open to the public.  

 

G. Voting.  The vote on the adoption of every resolution, any proposals 

creating a liability, or for the appropriation or expenditure of funds shall be by yeas or 

nays, the names of members voting for and of those voting against such action shall be 

entered upon the minutes. 

 

H. Procedure.  Unless otherwise provided, procedure at meetings shall follow 

Robert's Rules of Order for small Boards. 

 

I. Signing of Minutes.  When approved, all minutes of meetings of the Board 

of Directors shall be signed by the Secretary and the presiding officer of the particular 

meeting. 

 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 7 

J.  Closed Sessions.  The EDA will adhere to the Code of Virginia 2.2-3711 when a 

closed session is called. Under consultation from the Director of Economic Development and in 

relation to topics being discussed during a closed session, the Chairman has the responsibility to 

determine the relevance of who should be in the closed session. The Chairman has the option to 

invite any staff or other meeting attendees to attend the closed session. Additionally, the 

Chairman will determine if there may be a conflict of interest among any EDA members and act 

accordingly. For example, if an employer of one of the members or member’s family is being 

discussed, then the Chairman has the authority to excuse particular officials, including him or 

herself, from the closed session.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. 

 

COMMITTEES 

 

A. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the Chairman, Vice-

Chairman and immediate past Chairman of the Authority. If the immediate past 

Chairman is not a member of the Authority, the previous Chairman shall serve as a 

member of the Executive Committee.  Should there be a vacancy on the Committee, the 

Authority may vote one of its members other than the three referenced members to the 

Committee.  The Secretary shall be a nonvoting member of the Executive Committee 

and will not be counted towards the quorum of the committee. The Executive 

Committee shall meet at such times and such places as the Chairman may designate.  

The Secretary shall keep minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee which 

shall be preserved along with the minutes of the Board of Directors and rea d to the 

Board of Directors at its next meeting. 

 

 Two (2) members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum to 

transact business. In the absence of any member of the Executive Committee, the 

Chairman may but need not appoint one other director to act on the Executive 

Committee as a member pro tempore, and such member shall be counted as a member 

of such committee for the purpose of constituting a quorum, and such appointment shall 

be recorded in the record book of the Authority.  

 

 Any action taken by the Executive Committee shall be tentative and 

advisory only and shall be subject to approval by the Board of Directors.  

 

B. The Chairman may, with the advice and consent of the Board of Directors, 

appoint such special committees as may be deemed appropriate to carry out the intents 

and purposes of the Authority. 

 

ARTICLE IX. 

 

STAFF 
 



BY-LAWS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                            PAGE 8 

A. The Board of Directors may employ and compensate such  employees and 

agents, including attorneys and real estate brokers, whether engagement of the 

Authority or otherwise, as it deems necessary in carrying on the business of the 

Authority. 

 

 B. The employees and agents of the Authority may prepare and submit 

confidential reports and recommendations to the Board of Directors, but no action 

binding on the Authority shall be taken respecting such reports except as provided in 

ARTICLE III. 

 

 

ARTICLE X. 

 

OFFICIAL SEAL 
 

The official seal of the Authority shall consist of a disc having engraved or 

impressed upon it the following words and figures: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA - 1971. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XI. 

 

FISCAL YEAR 

 

The fiscal year of the Authority shall be from July 1 to June 30.  

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XII. 

 

AMENDMENTS 

 

Except as otherwise provided by law, these By-Laws may be amended, provided 

that notice of the proposed amendment, addition, alteration or repeal is given to the 

Board at least thirty (30) days in advance of the call of such meeting.  

 



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 10B  

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2023 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Close Valtim Performance Agreements 
                

SUMMARY 

In September 2019 the EDA provided Valtim with a $15,000 cash incentive for a new W+D piece of equipment 
(valued at $750K) and adding 8 new jobs (in addition to the existing 96 for a total of 104).  

In August of 2020, the EDA provided Valtim another $15,000 cash incentive for $620K investment in new 
equipment and were to hire 2 new full-time employees for a total of 106 employees. 

In 2022, the EDA granted a one-year extension on the original agreement from 2019 to give them more time to hire 
the needed employees and meet the expectations of the 2019 performance agreement. 

Both performance agreements have come to term. Currently the company is at 62 employees for a total loss of 34 
employees from their original 96. 

From the company: While the two new pieces of equipment are keeping our mail services department busy, other 
departments within our company have reduced workforce. We are currently at 62 employees total, as we had to close 
our contact center, losing 10 positions. Also, work in our hand insertion department is down and has been reduced 
by 11 positions over the last couple of years.  

Although the pandemic did not have a negative impact to our business initially, we have experienced some lagging 
impacts coupled with the minimum wage increases which have resulted in us having to tighten margins to win jobs. 
Cost of materials have increased, cost of labor has increased, and supply chain issues have become much more 
regular. This in turn has forced us to run our business much leaner than we’d like. Although we haven’t met the 
total headcount numbers, the two pieces of equipment that we purchased support our mail services operation which 
is the lifeblood of our company.  

 



 

ATTACHMENTS 

Performance Agreements 















 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 10C  

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2023 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Close Blue Ridge Optics Performance Agreement 
                

SUMMARY 

In September 2019 the EDA provided Blue Ridge Optics with a $20,000 cash incentive for new equipment valued at $450K 
and maintaining their headcount of 42 employees. In 2022, the EDA granted a one-year extension to give them more time to 
for hiring as their headcount had dropped by several people. 

The company was purchased by MPF Products, Inc. in 2022 and continues to grow. 

Blue Ridge Optics a division of MPF Products, Inc. is currently employes 30 people with 3 open positions. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Performance Agreement 








	09_07_2023_EDA_AGENDA
	08_02_2023_ EDA Minutes-Final
	YTD Budget Report 8-31-23
	Balance Sheet 8-31-23
	Memo 6B_East Coast Fabricators Expansion 090723
	East Coast Lease - September 2020
	Memo_10A Approval of Revised EDA By-laws 090723
	10A Revised EDA By-laws resolution 090723
	EDA Bylaws- September 2023 DRAFT for approval
	Memo 10B_Close Valtim Performance Agreements 090723
	Valtim 2019 Performance Agreement - SIGNED
	PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT-Valtim 2021 - SIGNED
	Memo 10C_Close Blue Ridge Optics Performance Agreement 090723
	BRO Performance Agreement - September 2019 - SIGNED

